B.B. & Associates

Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of
Stellaro Brands Private Limited

Report on the Audit of Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) financial statements

Opinion

1.

LY

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Stellaro Brands Private Limited (“the Company™),
which comprise the balance sheet as on March 31, 2025, and the statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for the year ended
March 31, 2025, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of the material accounting policies
and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the Ind AS financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,
as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of
the Company as on March 31, 2025, and its loss and total comprehensive loss, the changes in equity and its
cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

2. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10)

of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the code of ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Tndia (the “TCAT”)
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Ind AS financial statements and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the code of ethics.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Information Other than the Ind AS Financial Statemeants and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Director’s report, but does not include the Ind AS financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opihion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Ind AS
financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.
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Management’s Responsibility for the Ind AS financial statements

4. The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(S) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance (including other comprehensive income), cash flows and changes in
equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Indian Accounting Standards specified in the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as
amended) under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, Management and Board of Directors are responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless Management either intends to liquidate the Company
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS financial statements

5. Our objective is to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a-basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing
our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS
financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the Management.
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e Conclude on the appropriateness of Management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
Ind AS financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Ind AS financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the Ind AS
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i)
planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of
any identified misstatements in the Ind AS financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

6. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020, issued by the Central Government of India in
terms of Section 143(11) of the Act ("the Order"), we give in “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified
in paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order.

7. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the
Company, the managerial remuneration paid during the year is within the limits prescribed under Section 197
read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013.

8. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books except for the matters stated in paragraph 8(h)(vi) below on
reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 as amended.

¢) The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the statement

of cash flows and the statement of changes in equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
books of account.
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d)

g)

h)

ii.

.

iv.

In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Tndian Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025 taken on record
by the Board of Directors, none of the Directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being appointed
as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are as
stated in paragraph 8(b) above on reporting under section 143(3)(b) of the Act and paragraph 8(h)(vi) below
on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended);

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure B". Our report
expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company's internal
financial controls over financial reporting.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our knowledge and belief
and according to the information and explanations given to us:

The Company has no pending litigations as on March 31, 2025 which would have an impact on its
financial position.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts, including derivative contracts as on March 31,
2025 for which there were material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred, to the Tnvestor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2025.

(a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are
material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any
other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lead or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds {which are
material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person
or entity, including foreign entity.(“Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(¢) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has-come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations
under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material
misstatement.

4B agn
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V.

Vi.

The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year ended March 31, 2025.

Based on our examination, which included test checks and review of independent service auditor’s
reports where applicable, the Company has used accounting software for maintaining its books of
account for the year ended March 31, 2025 which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility
and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software,

except that:

in respect of an accounting software for maintenance of payroll records, operated by third party
software service provider, the independent auditors service organization controls 1 type 2 report
does not cover the assessment of audit trail of an accounting software maintained by third party.
Accordingly, we are unable to.comment on whether audit trail feature of such third party accounting
software was enabled and operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the
software;

in respect of a point of sale (POS) software operated by a third party software service provider, in
the absence of an independent auditor’s system and organization controls report covering the
requirement of audit trail, we are unable to comment whether audit trail feature of the software was
enabled and operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software or
whether there were any instances of the audit trail feature been tampered with.

Further, during the course of our audit, we did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature
being tampered with in respect of the accounting software for which the audit trail feature was operating.

Furthermore, the audit trail for the accounting software has been preserved by the Company for the
period from February 19,2024 to March 31, 2025, in compliance with the statutory requirements relating
1o record retention.

For B.B. & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration number: 023670N

Lt Lowrl

Balwan Bansal

Partner

Membership No: 511341

Place: New Delhi

Date: July 14, 2025
UDIN: 25511341 BMIUIZ5047
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Annexure A to Independent Auditors’ Report

In respect of Annexure A referred to in paragraph 8 under "Report on Other Legal and Regulatery
Requirements' section of our Report to the members of Stellaro Brands Private Limited (“the Company”)
for the year ended March 31, 2025, we report that: ’

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that:

ii.

1.

(a)(A) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation, of property, plant and equipment and relevant details of right-of-use assets.

(a)(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b) The property, plant and equipment are physically verified by the Management according to a phased
program designed to cover all the items over a period of three years which, in our opinion, is reasonable
having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program, no fixed
assets were due for physical verification by the Management during the year.

(¢) The Company does not hold any immovable property (other than properties where the Company is the
lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee). Accordingly, reporting under
clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets)
and intangible assets during the year.

() No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as on March
31, 2025 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as
amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

(a) Inventory has been physically verified by the Management during the year. In our opinion, the frequency
of verification by the Management is reasonable and the coverage and procedure for such verification is
appropriate. No discrepancies of 10% or more in aggregate for each class of inventory were noticed in
respect of such inventories. .

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five
crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of the security of current assets
at any point of time during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records
of the Company, the Company has not made any investments in or provided security to or provided
guarantees, granted loans and advances in the nature of loans during the year to companies, firms, limited
liability partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iii) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company
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iv.

vi.

vii.

viil.

iX.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records
of the Company, the Company has neither made any investments nor has it given loans or provided
guarantee or security as specified under Section 185 and 186 of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause
3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be deposits. Hence, reporting
under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under section 148(1) of
the Act for the business activities carried out by the Company. Hence, reporting under clause 3(vi) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

In respect of statutory dues:

a) Undisputed statutory dues, including Goods and Services tax, Provident Fund, Income tax, Employees’
State Insurance, cess, and other material statutory dues applicable to the Company have generally been
regularly deposited by the Company with the appropriate authorities. We have been informed that the
provisions of the Service Tax, Sales Tax, duty of Excise, duty of Customs, Value Added Tax are not
applicable to the Company.

There were no material undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Services tax, Provident
Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, cess, and other material statutory dues in arrears as on
March 31, 2025 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

b) There are no statutory dues that have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

(a) According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanation given to
us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to the
lender.

(b) The Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other
lender.

(¢) According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanation given to
us, the Company has not obtained any term loans as on the balance sheet date. Accordingly, reporting under

clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that no funds raised on short-term
basis have been used for long-tern1 purposes by the Company.

(e) The Company does not have any subsidiaries, associates, or joint ventures. Accordingly reporting under
clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable.

(f) The Company does not have any-subsidiaries, associates, or joint ventures. Accordingly reporting under
clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable.

7]
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X1

Xii.

Xiil.

Xiv.

XV.

Xvi.

XVil.

XViii.

(a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) During the year, the Company has made a private placement of equity shares by way of conversion of
borrowings and interest accrued thereon into equity shares. Requirements of Section 42 and Section 62 of
the Act have been complied with.

(a) Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the information and
explanations given to us, considering the principles of materiality outlined in the SAs, we report that no
fraud by the Company or on the Company has becn noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under Section 143(12) of the Act
has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(c) The Company is not required to implement the whistle blower policy. Accordingly, clause 3(xi)(c) is
not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanation given to us, transactions with related parties are in
compliance with section 188 of the Act, where applicable and the details of such related party transactions
have been disclosed in the Ind AS financial statements as required under applicable accounting standard.
The provisions of section 177 are not applicable to the Company and accordingly reporting under clause
3(xiii) insofar as it relates to section 177 of the Act is not applicable to the Company and hence not
commented upon.

The provisions of Section 138 of the Act are not applicable to the Company and accordingly reporting under
clause 3(xiv)(a) and 3(xiv)(b) insofar as it relates to section 138 of the Act is not applicable to the Company
and hence not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion during the year the company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with its Directors or persons connected with its Directors and
hence provisions of section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company. '

(a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934. Accordingly, clauses 3(xvi)(a) and (b) and (c) of the Order are not applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanations provided to us, there is no core investment compaiy
within the Group (as defined in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and

accordingly reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has incurred cash loss amounting to INR 130.57 million and INR 47.31 million during the
year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 respectively.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.
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XIX.

XX.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment
of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and our knowledge of the
Board of Directors and Management plans, support letter from the holding Company and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes
us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company
is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within
a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the
future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of
the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall
due.

The provisions of section 135(5) of the Act are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, clauses
3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

For B.B. & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration number: 023670N

Balwan Bansal

Partner

Membership No: 511341

Place: Gurugram
Date: July 14, 2025
UDIN: 25511341 BMIUIZ5047
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements under
of Section 143(3)(i) of the Act (Referred to in paragraph 9(f) under Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements' section of our report of even date)

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

1.

The Management of the Company-is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controts
based on thc internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “ICAI”). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company’s policies, the safeguarding of ‘its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act.

Auditors' Responsibility

2.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to the
Ind AS financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls with reference to the Ind AS financial statements. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to the Ind AS financial
statements were established and maintained and whetler such controls operated effectively in all material

respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to the Ind AS financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls with reference to the Ind AS financial statements included obtaining an understanding of such
internal financial controls assessing the risk that a material weakness exists and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor's judgement including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial
statements whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to the Ind AS financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial controls with Reference to the Ind AS Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to the Ind AS financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of the Ind
AS financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial controls with reference to the Ind AS financial statements include those policies
and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of the Ind AS financial statements in accordarce

10 |
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with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of Management and Directors of the company; and (iit) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of
the company's assets that could have a material effect on the Ind AS financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial controls with Reference to the Ind AS Financial Statements

6. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to the Ind AS financial
statements including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls material
misstatements due to errur or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of auy evaluation of the
internal financial controls with reference to the Ind AS financial statements to future periods are subject to the
tisk that the internal financial controls with reference to the Ind AS financial statements may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

7. In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has,
in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal
financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as on March 31, 2025, based on the criteria
for internal financial control over financial reporting established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Tnternal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the ICAL

For B.B. & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration numbe& 023670N

o b

Balwan Bansal
Partner
Membership No. 511341

Place: New Delhi
Date: July 14, 2025
UDIN: 25511341 BMIUIZ5047
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Stellaro Brands Private Limited

CIN: US1100DL2015PTC362498

Balance Sheet as on March 31, 2025

{All amounts in INR million, unless otherwise stated)

Notes As on Ason
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 7.76 5.61
Right-of-use assets 4 16.97 141
Other intangible assets 5 0.85 7.44
Financial assets
(i) Other financial assets 6 140 -
Other assets 7 0.03 -
27.01 14.46
Current assets
Inventory 8 12.68 74.56
Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 9 3.97 23.66
(if) Cash & cash equivalents 10 441 2.29
(iii) Other financial assets 6 5.87 142
Current tax assets (Net) 11 0,11 0.48
Other assets 7 29.22 27.71
56.26 130.12
Total assets 83.27 144.58
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital 12 1,03 0.61
Instruments entirely equity in nature 13 0.04 0.04
Other equity 14 (7.65) 1120.25)
16.58) (119.60)
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 15 - 150.00
(i) Lease liability 16 14.91 0.27
(iii) Other financial kabilities 17 - 16.35
Provisions 18 4.53 1.03
19.44 167.65
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Lease liability 16 1.52 1.09
(ii) Trade payables 19
' (iia) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 16.35 56.97
(iib) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and smell enterprises 15.21 6.76
(iii) Other financial liabilities 17 3548 3011
Other current labilities 20 1.30 0.74
Provisions 18 0.55 0.26
70.41 96.53
Total equity and liabilities 83.27 144,58
Summary of material accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes are an intégral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date
For B.B. & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Stellare Brands Private Limit:

Firm registration number: 023670N

Balwan Bansal
Partner
Membership No.: 511341

Place: New Dethi
Date: July 14, 2025

Place: Gurugram
Date: July 14, 2025

Himanshu Chakrawarti
Whole-time director
DIN: 01196050

Shashi K Jalan
DIN: 07299358

Place: Gurugram
Date: July 14, 2025



Stellaro Brands Private Limited

CIN: U51100DL2015PTC362498

Statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2025
(41l amounts in INR million, unless otherwise stated)

Notes For the vear ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Income
Revenue from operations 21 114.18 236.30
Other income 22 0.26 8.80
Tetal income 114.44 245.10
Expenses
Purchases 23 24.86 211.78
Change in inventory 24 79.10 (55.22)
Employee benefits expense 25 64.11 20.58
Finance costs 26 10.21 52.89
Depreciation and amortization expense 27 5.73 10.70
Other expenses 28 66.68 142.43
Total expenses 250.69 383.16
Loss before exceptional items and tax €136.25) (138.06)
Lass before tax {136.25) (138.06)
Loss after tax for the year (136.25) {138.06)
Other comprehensive income:
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
Re-measurement gains on defined benefit plans 0.60 0.08
Items that will be reclassified te profit or loss in subsequent periods: - -
Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss - -
Other comprehensive income for the year 0.60 0.08
Total comprehensive loss for the year (135.65) (137.98)
Earnings per equity share 29
Nominal value of share INR 10 (March 31, 2024, INR 10)
- Basic (in INR) (1,899.78) (11,322.24)
- Dituted (in INR) (1,899.78) (11,322.24)
Summary of material accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the fi ial stat £
As per our report of even date
For B.B. & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Steltaro Brands Private Limited
Firm registration number: 023670N }t 7
(uz W
1975\ &'
Balwan Bansal Himanshu Chakrawarti Shashi K Jalan
Partuer Whole-time director Director

Membership No.: 511341

Place: New Delhi
Date: July 14, 2025
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Stellaro Brands Private Limited
CIN: US1100DL2015PTC362498
Statement of cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2025

(A1l amounts in INR wmillion, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
A. Cash flow from operating activities
Laoss before tax (136.25) (138.06)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation ott propesty, plant and equipment 1.62 296
Depreciation on right-of-use asset 202 525
Amortization on intangible assets 209 249
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipmient - 8.16
ypai 1 on i ible assets 5.24 1.74
Balances written off’ 212 -
Provision for inventory write down {17.51) 19.92
Provision for doubtful debts (0.15) 13.06
Provision for doubtful assets {0.44) -
Interest expense on borrowings 10.85 45.14
Interest expense on lease Lability 0.65 1.52
Liability and provisions no longer required, written back - (0.26)
Share based payment expenses 2.55 -
Gain on lease termination - {2.83)
Unwinding of discount on security deposit 6.12) {0.52)
Interest income from bank deposit 10.31) -
Operating losses before working capital changes (127.44) 41.43)
Movements in working capital :
(D /h in trade payabl (32.17) 61.81
Increase in other financial liabilities 4.71 0.28
D fIncrease in other liabiliti 0.56 {12.80)
Increase in provisions 4.39 0.53
(Tncrease)/Decrease in inventories 79.39 (55.22)
(Increase)/Decrease in trade receivables 19.85 (19.67)
(Increase)/Decrease in other financial assets {6.85) 0.83
(Increase)/Decrease in other assets (3.25) 27.70
Cash used in operations (60.75) 37197
Direct taxes paid (net of refunds) 0.37 0.45
Net cash flow used in operating activities (A) {60.38] (37.52)
B. Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (4.49) (5.08)
Disposal of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets - 0.13
Interest income from bank deposit 0.11 -
Net cash used in investing activities ®) {4.38) 14.95)
C. Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of Equity Shares 20.01 -
Proceeds from borrowings 50.00 50.00
Interest paid on borrowings {1.08) ©.47)
Repayment of principal portion of lease liability {1.40) {3.89)
Repayment of interest on lease liability (0.65) 1.52)
Net cash flow from financing activities © 66.88 44.12
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 212 1,65
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 2.29 0.64
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 4.41 2.29
Components of cash and cash equivalents:
- Cash on hand 0.11 0:04
- With banks: on current account 4.30 2.25
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (Refer note no. 9) 4.41 229
Summary of material acconnting policies 2
The cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in the Ind AS 7 "Statement of Cash Flows".
Refer Note 15 and 16 for reconciliation of liabilities arising from iviti
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date
For B.B. & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Stellaro Brands Private Limited

Firmi registration number: 023670N
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Stellaro Brands Private Limited
CIN: US1100DL2015PTC362498

Statement of chauges in equity for the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts in INR million, unless otherwise stated)

No. of shares Amount
A. Equity share capital
Issued, subscribed and fully paid
Balance as on April 1, 2023 (equity share of INR 10 each) 11,790 0.12
Equity shares issued during the year 49,251 0.49
Balance as on March 31, 2024 (equity share of INR 16 each) 61,041 0.61
Equity shares issued during the year 42.075 0.42
Balance as on March 31, 2025 (equity share of INR 10 each) 1,03.116 1.03
B. Instruments entirely equity in nature
Series Seed Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS)
Balance as on April 1, 2023 (equity share of INR 10 each) 4,246 0.04
CCPS issued during the year - -
Ralance as on March 31, 2024 (equity share of INR 18 each) 4,246 0.04
CCPS issued during the year - -
Balance as on March 31, 2025 (equity share of INR 10 each) 4,246 0.04
C. Other Equity*
Description Attributable to the equity helders of the Company Total
Securities Retained Share based General reserve
Premi earnings payment reserve
As on April 1, 2023 39.13 (312.41) - 3.41 (269.87)
Loss for the year - (138.06) - - {138.06)
Other comprehensive loss
Re-measurement gains on defined benefit plans - 0.08 - - 0.08
Total comprehensive loss (137.98) - - (137.98)
Securities premium on equity shares issued during the year 287.60 - - - 287.60
As on March 31, 2024 i 326.73 450.39) - 3.41 (120.25)
Loss for the year - (136.25) - - (136.25)
Other comprehensive income
Re-measurement gains on defined benefit plans - 0.60 - - 0.60
Total comprehensive loss - (135.65) - - (135.65)
Options expense recognized - - 2.55 - 255
Securities premium on equity shares issued during the vear 245.70 - - - 245.70
As on March 31, 2025 5§72.43 (586.04) 2.55 3.41 (7.65)
*Refer note no.14 for details.
Summary of material accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For B.B. & Associates Stellaro Brands Private Limited
Chartered Accountants -
Firm registration number: 023670N
/(m)m« Lo @QJ
Balwan Bansal Himanshu Chakrawarti Shashi K Jalan
Partner Whole-time director Director

Membership No.: 511341

Place: New Dethi
Date: July 14, 2025

DIN: 01196050

Place: Gurugram
Date: July 14, 2025

DIN: 07299358

Place: Gurugram
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Stellaro Brands Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
CIN: U51100DL2015PTC362498

(Al amounts-in INR million, unless otherwise stated)

1

21

22

23

Corporate information

Stellaro Brands Private Limited ("the Company") is a private company domiciled in India and was incorporated under the Companies Act, 2013 on June 11, 2015. The Company is a
wholly owned subsidisry of AceVector Limited (formerly known as Snapdeal Limited)) (“the Holding Company”). The company is engaged in the busi of facturing goods in
India through third-party manufacturers under its brand names, and selling the same through various online and offline channels.The Ind AS financial statements for the year ended
March 31, 2025 were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on July 14, 2025.

Basis of preparation of Ind AS financial statements and material accounting policies

This note provides a list of the material ing policies adopted in the preparation of these ial These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, uniess otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The ial of the Company have been prepared in dance with Indian A ing Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 (the Act)
read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) issued by Ministry of Corporate affairs and presentation requirements of

Division 1f of Schedule 1 to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule 1T).

A i ticies have been i ly applied except where a newly issued Accounting Standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing Accounting Standard requires a

£ P

change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees "INR" or "Rs." and all values are stated as INR or Rs. million, except when otherwise indicated. (Rs 0.00 denotes figures are
below the ding off norms adopted by the Company).

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following assets .md habllmes which have been measured at fair value:
« Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer g policy regarding fi );
« Defined benefit plans — plan assets measured at fair value.

Guoing Concern Assumption

The Company’s Ind AS financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis notwithstanding the fact that it has incurred a loss after tax of INR 135.65 million for the
year ended March 31, 2025 and has accumulated losses of 386.04 million as on the balance sheet date. The appropriateness of the going concern assumption on which the Ind AS
are prepared depends on the ability of the Company to generate sufficient cash flows from its operations based on expected future growth and letter of support

provided by the Holding C y.

P

3

of asset and classification of labilities that may be

These Ind AS fi ial herefore do not include any adj relating to bility and cl
necessary if the Company was unable to continue as going concern.

Summary of material accounting policies

a. Use of Estimates
The preparation of the fi ial in conformity with the principles of Ind AS requires the to make jud i and ptions that effect the
reported of revenues, exp assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting year. Although these estimates are based on the

management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets or Habilities in future years.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to ing esti are recognised in the year in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that year, or in the year of the revision and future years if the revision affects both current and future years. In particular, mformauon about the s1gmﬂcant areas
of estimation, uncertainty and eritical judg in-applying ing policies that have the most significant effect on the gnised in the fi ial infor

b. Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:

- Expected 10 be realised or intended to be sold or d in normal operating cycle;

- Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

- Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or

- Cash & cash equivalent unless icted from being exch d or used to settle a Liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

- Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;

- It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

- Itis due to be settled within twelve months afler the reporting period; or

- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

The terms of the liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for p ing and their realisation i cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its
operating cycle.

(This spuce has been left blank intentionally)




Stellaro Brands Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
CIN: U51100DL2015PTC362498

(A1l amounts in INR million, unless otherwise stated)

¢. Foreign currencies
The Company’s standalone fi ial are p d in INR, which is also the Company’s functional currency.

d. Fair value measurement
The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly ion b market particip at the date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

- In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
- In the absence of a principal matket, in the most advantageous market for the asset or lability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is d using the ptions that matket participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act
in their economic best interest.

¢. Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the exfent that it is probable that the ic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment
is being made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or
duties collected on behalf of the government.

However, Goods and Services Tax (GST) is not received by the Company on its own accourit. Rather, it is tax collected on value added to the commodity or supplies made by the
seller on behalf of the government. Accordingly, it is excluded from revenue.
Revenue from Sale of goods

1 1 d : Faot

This policy governs revenue recognition for the sale of apparel and accessories to both retail customers, including online and in store Revenue of a
performance obligation is measured at the amount of uansacnon price (net of variable cons:deranon and returns) allocated to that performance obligation. The transaction price of
goods sold and services rendered is net of variable consid on t of various d and sct offered by the Company.

Retail Sales (Own Website): Revenue fiom sale of goods is recognised when goods are dispatched to the customer. Revenue is shown net of returns, discounts, taxes {GST)

Retail Sales from stores: Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when goods are delivered and controt has been transferred to the customer. Revenue is shown net of returns,
discounts, taxes (GST) .

Marketplace Sales: Revenue gnized net of marketpl ission and net of returns, discounts, taxes (GST)

f. Property, plant and equipment & intangible assets

i) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost net of recoverable {axes, trade discounts and rebates and include added on less d depreciation and
_impairment loss, if any. The cost of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, borrowing cost and any cost directly attributable to bringing the asset to its working

condition for its intended use, net charges on foreign exck and adj arising from exchange rate variations atiributable 1o the assets. Subsequent expenditures

related to an item of property, plant and equipment are added to its book value only if they increase the fiuture benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard

of performance. Projects under which assets are not ready for their intended use are disclosed under Capital Work-in-Progress.

1 1

if) Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost of acquisition net of recoverable taxes less lated amortization/ depletion and impaitment loss, if any. The cost comprises purchase price,
borrowing costs, and any cost directly attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use and net charges on foreign exchang tracts and adj

arising from exchange rate variations attributable to the intangible assets.

iii) Depreciation and amortization

Property, plant and equipment and capital work in progress are stated at cost, net of fated depreciation and ac d impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost
of replacing part of the property, plant and equipment and borrowing costs if the recognition criteria are met, if any. When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specnﬁc useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost xs

recognised in the carrying amount of the property, plant and equip as a repl ifthe r ition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maii costs are gni
in profit or loss as incurred.
Depreciation is caleulated on a straight-line basis using the rates arrived at based on the useful fives esti d by the gement. The Company has used the following useful lives

to provide depreciation on its fixed assets.

Category of assets [Esti dlifeas [Esti d useful life
IEr Schedule I

Furniture and fixtures 10 years 6 vears

Comp and data p i gl

its 3 -6 years 3 -6 years

Office equipments 15 vears 5 vears

(This space has been left blank intentionally)




Stellaro Brands Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
CIN: U51100DL.2015PTC362498

{AH amounts in INR million, unless otherwise stated)

Leasehold Improvements are amortized over the lease term of the respective assets,
Depreciation on assets purchased during the year is provided ont pro rata basis from the date of purchase of fixed assets. Individual assets costing less than INR 5,000 are fully
depreciated in the year of purchase.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initiali ised is d gnised upon disposal or when no future ic benefits are d from its use or
disposal. any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculatcd as the difference b the net disposal p ds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the
iticome statement when the asset is derecognised.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equip are reviewed at each fi jal year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

The Company has a policy to perform the, physical verification of the fixed assets once in every three year.

In respect of additions or extensions forming an integral part of existing assets and i ~spares, including incr 1 cost arising on aceount of translation of foreign currency
liabilities for acquisition of property, plant and equipment, depreciation are provided as id over the residual life of the respective assets. Depreciation on preperty, plant and
equipment added/ disposed off during the year, is provided on pro-rata basis with reference to the month of addition/ disposal.

iif) Fmpsairment of assets

Assessment for impairment is done at each balance sheet date as to there is any i that an agsset (tangible and i ible) may be impaired. If any such ind

exlsts an-estimate of the recoverable amount of the asset is made. Assets whose carrying value exceeds their recoverable amount are written down to the receverable amount by
the imp loss as an exp in the of profit and Joss. The management yearly assesses using, external and internal sources, whether there is an indication

that an asset may be impaired. An impairment Joss is recognized wherever the carrying value of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is higher of the

asset’s net selling price or value in use, which means the present value of future cash flow expected to arise from the continuing use of the assets and its eventual disposal.

hath e

g. Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

General
Provisions are gnised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some or all 6f a provision

to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense
relating to & provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

Contingent liabilities

Contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one are more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company , or is a present obligation that arises from past event but is not recognised because either it is not probable that
an outflow of bodyi benefits will be required to settle the obligation, or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made. Contingent
tiabilitics are disclosed and not recogmsed

Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no Jonger probable that the eutflow of resources would be required fo settle
the obligation, the provision is d.

h. Retirement and other employee benefits
Compensation to employees for services rendered is accounted in accordance with Ind AS-19, "Employee Benefits”.

i) Short terim employee benefits

Al employes benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-term employee benefits, Benefits such as salaries, wages, allowances, non-
v benefits and employees benefits under defined contribution plans such as provident and other funds, which fall due for payment within a year of twelve months after

rendering of services are recognised in the period in which the employee renders the related service. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid when there is a

present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be i d reliably. These expenses are

recognized at the amount payable determined as per the Human R policies of the Comp

1i) Performance bonus
Eligibility of bonus for employees is calculated every year on the basis of performance of the Company and the employees and debited to the profit & loss aceount of the year in

which it is declared.

iif) Compensated absences

Compensated absences which are expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employee renders the related services are recognised as
undiscounted liability at the bal sheet date. Comp d ab which are not expected to accur within twelve months afier the end of the period in which the employee

renders the related services are recognised as an actuarially determined Hability at the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet date.

iv) Contribution to provident and other funds

Retirement benefits in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme and the ibutions are charged to the stat of profit and loss of the reporting period when
the contributions to the respective funds are due. There are no other obligations other than the contribution payable to the respective fund.
v) Gratuity benefit

The Company operates one defined benefit plan for its employees, viz., grawity for the employees who have covered five years of continuous service. The costs of providing benefits
under this plans is determined on the basis of acmarial valuation at cach year-end using the projected wnit credit metbod. Actuarial gains and losses for this defined benefit plan is
recognized in full in the period in which they occur in the statement of profit and loss. Remeasurement, comprising actuavial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the asset

1

ceiling and the Teturn on plan assets (excluding interest), is reflected i diately in the balance sheet with a charge or credit gnised in other comp: ive income iu the period
in which they occur.

(This space has been left blank intentionally)
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Netes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
CIN: U51100DL2615PTC362498

(All amounts in INR million, unless otherwise stated)}

i. Share-based payments
Employees (including senior executives) of the Company receive remuneration in the form of share-based pay , whereby employees render services as consideration for equity
instruments (equity-setiled transactions). ’

j- Financial instruments

Afi ial i is any that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial Hability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets

Inin‘al ition and measu

Fi 1 assets are classified, at initial recognition, as sut Ty d at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income (OCI), and fair value through profit
or loss. The classification of financial assets at initial tecagmtum ds on the fi ial asset’s 1 cash flow ct istics and. the Companies busi; model for
managing them.With the exception of trade receivables that do not contam a signifi fi p or for which the Company has applied the practical expedient, the
Company initially afi ial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of 2 financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, jon costs. Trade ivables that do not
contain a signifi fi i p or for which the Company has applied the practical expedient are d at the transaction price determined under Ind AS 115. Refer to
the accounting policies in section (d) Revenue recognition.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and d at ised cost or fair value through OCI, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are “solely payments of principal and
interest (SPPI)‘ on the principal amount ding. This is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level.

The Ci busi model for ing fi jal assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether

P

cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held within a business
model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows while financial assets classified and measured at fair value through OCT are held within a
business model with the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame blished by regulation or ion in the market place (regular way trades) are
recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company its to purchase or sell the asset. '

Debt instruments at amortised cost

A “debt instrument" is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:
a) The asset is held within a busi mode} whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual ¢ash ﬂows, and
b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount omstaudmg

Afler initial such fi ial assets are subsequentl; d at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into
t any-di or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The
losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.

Derecognition
Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment Ioss on the following financial assets and
credit risk exposure:

a) Financial assets that are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, deposits, trade ivables and bank bal

b) Available for sale financial assets

<) Lease receivables under Ind AS 116

d) Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 18

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impai loss all on:

- Frade receivables or contract revenue receivables; and
- All lease receivables resuliing from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 116

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each
repomng date, right frorm its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since
initial recognition, If eredit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit sisk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL
is used. If, in a subsequent year, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity
reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a fi al i The 12 th ECL is a portion of the lifetime
ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in d with the and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all
cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider:

- All contractual terms of the fi ial instrument (including prep ion, call and similar options) over the expected life of the § ial instrument. He , in rare cases
when the expected life of the financial instrument cannot be esnmated zeliably, then the entity is required to use the inil i term of the fi ial instrument

- Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

The Company uses a provision matrix to determine irapairment loss allowance on portfolio of its trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default

rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and
h in the forward-looking esti are analysed, On that basis, the Company esti the following provision matrix at the reporting date.

Goods and Services tax receivable, the Company uses a provision milestone basis of the forward looking estimate of the tax credits in the next five years to determine the impairment
loss allowance at every reporting date.
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(4] amounts in INR million, unless otherwise stated)

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the year is gnized as income/ exp in the of profit and loss (P&L). This ameunt is reflected under
the head “other expenses” in the P&L. The balance sheet p ion for various i ial i is described below:
- Fi iai assets dasat ised cost, I revenue receivables and lease receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measurement

of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount, Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Company does not reduce impairment allowance from

the gross carrying amount. .
- Available for sale financial assets: Since financial assets are already reflected at fair value, impairment allowance is -not further reduced from its value. Rather, ECL amount is

presented as ‘accumulated impairment amount’ in the OCL

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial instruments on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of

facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable signifi increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

The Company does not have any purchased or origi d credit-impaired (POCI) fi tal assets, i.e., fi ial assets which are credit impaired on purck origi
Financial liabilities

Initial gnition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial gnition, as {1 ial Liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables as appropriate.

Al financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.
The Company's financial Habilities include trade and other payables.

Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the labilities simultancously.

k. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an

insignificant risk of changes in value.
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafis as they are

considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

1. Segment Reporting

The Company's primary busi g1 is blishing, developing, designing, producing and ptualizing direct marketing solutions through web and non-web based
platforms. Accordingly, there are no other reportable busi or geographical to be disclosed as per notified Ind AS - 108 "Operating Segments”.

m. Expenses

The Company has gnized all exp on accrual basis of accounting.

n. Inventories

Traded goods are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined on first in first out basis. Ir y cost includes purchase price and directly attributable costs

such as taxes other than those subsequently recoverable by the Company from the tax authorities, freight inward and other related incidental expenses incurred in bringing the
inventory to its present condition and location.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of busi less esti d cost y to. make the sale.

0. Borrowing costs

Borrowing cost that is attributable to the acquisition or construction of a qualifying asset is capitalized as part of the cost of such asset. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes
substantial year of time to get ready for its intended use. H , the pany has not incurred any borrowing cost during the year which needs to be capitalised as part of the cost
of the asset.

p. Earning per share

The basic earning per equity shares are computed by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to the equity share holders for the year by the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the reporting year. The number of shares used in computing diluted earnings per share comprises the weighted average number of shares considered for
driving basic earnings per share and also the weighted average number of equity shares, which may be issued on the convetsion of all dilutive potential, unless the results would be
anti-dilutive.

q. Taxation
Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax. «

i) Current tax
Provision for current tax is recognized in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and is made annually based on the tax liability after taking credit for tax

allowances and exemptions.

ii) Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized for all the timing differences, subject to the consideration of prudence in respect of deferred tax assets. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized
for the future tax consequences attributable to timing differences that result between the profits offered for income taxes and the profits as per the financial statements. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are measured using the tax rates and tax laws that have been ted or suk ively d at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are reassessed for the
appropriateness of their respective carrying values at each Balance Sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognized and caried forward only to the extent that there is a reasonable
certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized.

In situations where the Company has unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward tax losses, all deferred tax assets are recognized only if there is virtual certainty supported by
convincing evidence that they can be realized against future taxable profits.

However, Deferred tax assets has not been recognized because “Virtual Certainty” required against carry forward of losses & unabsorbed depreciation and “Reasonable Certainty”
required against other timing differences for sufficient future taxable income is not present.




Stellaro Brands Private Limited

CIN: US1100DL2615PTC362498

Notes to financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2025
(A1l amounts in INR million, unless otherwise stated)

3 Property, plant and equipment

Compnters sid data Electric equipments Furniture & fittings Office equip ts 1 hold Total
processing wnits improvements
‘Gross block
As on April 1, 2023 126 0.21 3.95 1.55 9.38 16.35
Additions 0.01 - 0.04 0.80 4.23 5.08
Deletions 0.98) 10.21) {3.92) 10,33} 9.38) (14.82)
As on March 31, 2024 0.29 - 0.67 2.62 4.23 6.61
Additions 0.01 - 0.02 9.12 3.62 3.77
Deletions . - - - - - -
As on Mareh 31, 2025 0.30 - 0.09 2.14 185 10.38
A d dep "
As on April 1, 2023 1.07 021 0.61 6.39 232 4.60
Depreciation charged 0.12 - 0.46 0.36 202 2.96
Deletions (0.97) {0.21% (1.04) 0.15) (4.19) 6.56)
As on March 31, 2024 0.22 - 0.03 0.60 6.15 1.00
Additions 0.06 - 0.01 042 113 1.62
Deletions - - = - = -
As on March 31, 2028 0.28 - 0.04 1.02 1.28 2.62
Net block
As on March 31, 2024 0.07 - 0.04 1.42 4.08 5.61
As on March 31, 2025 0.92 - .05 1.12 6.57 7.76
4  Right-of-use asséts
Buildings Total
As on April 1, 2023 17.77 17.77
Additions 173 1.73
Disposal (12.84) (12.84)
Depreciation (5.25) {5.25)
As on March 31, 2024 1.41 141
Additiens 17.58 17.58
Depreciation (2.02) (2.02)
As on March 31, 2025 16.97 16.97
-5 Other intangible assets
Website Brand Licensing Computer software ‘Total
Gross block
As on April 1, 2023 - 12.23 0.40 12.63
Additiens - - - -
Deletions - - 0.13) 10.13)
As on March 31, 2024 - 12.23 0.27 12.50
Additions 0.75 - - 0.75
Deletions - - - -
As on March 31, 2625 0.78 1223 0.27 13.25
Amortization
As on April 1, 2023 - 0.61 0.32 6.93
Amortization expense - 245 0.04 249
Deletions - - 0.10) (0.10)
Provision for impairment - 1.74 - 1.74
As on March 31, 2024 - 4.80 0.26 5.06
Amortization expense 0.11 1.98 0.01 2.10
Deletions - - -
Provision for impairment - 524 524
As on March 31, 2025 a.11 12.62 0.27 12,40
Net block
As on March 31, 2024 - 7.43 0.01 744
As on March 31, 2025 .64 0.21 - 0.85

Notes on impairment

During the year ended March 31, 2025, the Company recognized an impairment loss of INR 5.24 million (previous year: INR 1.74 mitlion) on its brands,

£l

)

ing an

of its

amount. The impairment was recognized due to a decline in the expected future cash flows and realizable value of the brands, resulting from changes in market conditions and business performance.




Stellaro Brands Private Limited

CIN: U51160DL2015PTC362498

Notes to financial statements for the year ended Mareh 31, 2025
(All amovnts in INR million, unless otherwise stated)

6  Other financial assets As on Ason
) March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Unsecured considered good unless otherwise stated
At amortised cost
Security deposits 1.83 0.95
Advances recoverable in cash or kind 0.38 0.47
Recoverables from related parties (refer note 40) 5.06 -
7.27 142
Breakup of other financial assets:
Non-current
At amortised cost
Security deposits 1.40 -
1.40 -
Current
At amortised cost
Security deposits 0.43 0.95
Advances recoverable in cash or kind 0.38 0.47
Recoverables from related parties (refer note 40) 5.06 -
5.87 1.42
Note: Refer note 37 for fair value measurements relating to financial assets.
7 Other assets As on March 31, 2025 As on March 31, 2024
Unsecured considered good unless otherwise stated
Balances with statutory/government authorities 35.47 30.29
Less: Provision for doubtful assets* (6.89) 28.58 (7.33) 22.96
Advance to vendors 0.36 3.91
Capital advances 0.03 -
Prepayments 0.22 0.84
Advance to Employees 0.06 -
29.25 27.71
Breakup of other assets:
Non-current
Capital advances 0.03 -
0.03 -
Carrent
Balances with statutory/government authorities 3547 30.29
Less: Provision for doubtful assets® 6.89] 28.58 (7.33) 22.96
Advance to vendors 0.36 3.91
Prepayments 0.22 0.84
Advance to Employees 0.06 -
29.22 27.71
* Provision amounting to INR 6,89 miltion (March 31, 2024: INR 7.33 million) has been created against Goods & Service Tax ITC Credit as there is no virtual
certainty that this ITC credit will be adjusted against the GST liability in the near future.
8 Inventory As on As on
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Closing Inventory* 15.38 94.48
Less: Provision for inventory write down (2.70) (19.92)
12.68 74.56

# includes Goods-in-transit amounting to INR 2.37 million (March 31, 2024: INR Nil)

(this space has been intentionally left blank)
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in INR million, unless otherwise stated)

9  Trade receivables Ason As on
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Unsecured
Trade receivables 3.97 23.66
3.97 23.66
Breakup of trade receivables:
Trade receivables considered good 6.97 23.66
Trade receivables-credit impaired 27.02 2717
33.99 5083
Impairment Allowance (allowance for bad and doubtful debts)
Trade receivables-credit impaired 27.02 2717
Provision for sales retumns 3.00 -
30,02 2717

Notes related to trade receivables:
a). Trade receivables ate non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 0 to 90 days.

b). No trade or other receivables are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person. Nor any trade or other

receivables are due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director, or a member.
¢). Refer note 30 for ageing of trade receivables.

10 Cash & cash equivalents As on Ason
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Balances with banks:
= On current accounts 4.30 2.25
Cash on hand 0.11 0.04
’ 4.41 2.29
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following:
Balances with banks:
- On current accounts 4.30 225
Cash in hand 0.11 0.04
4.41 2.29
There are no repatriation resirictions with regard to cash and cash equivalent as at the end of the reporting peripd and prior period.
11  Current tax assets (Net) As on Ason
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Advance income tax/ tax deducted at source 0.11 0.48
0.11 0.48

(this space has been intentionally lefi blank)
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(41l amounts in INR million, unless otherwise stated)

12 Equity Share Capital As.on As on
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Authorized share capital
235,000 equity shares of INR 10 each (March 31, 2024: 85,000 equity shares of INR 10 each) 2.35 0.85
9,800 preference shares of INR 10 each (March 31, 2024: 9,800 preference shares of INR 10 each) 0.10 0.10
5,200 Series Seed CCPS of INR 10 each (March 31, 2024: 5,200 Series Seed CCPS INR 10 each) 0.05 0.05
2.50 1.00

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up shares

1,03,116 Equity shares of INR 10 each (March 31, 2024: 61,041 equity shares of INR 10 each) 1.03 0.61
4,246 Series Seed CCPS of INR 10 each (March 31, 2024: 4,246 Series Seed CCPS of INR 19 each) 0.04 0.04
1.07 0.65

a) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting yesr

Equity shares

As on March 31, 2025 As on March 31, 2024
Nae. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
At the beginhing of the year 61,041 0.61 11,790 0.12
Issued during the year 42,075 0.42 49,251 0.49
4] ding at the end of the vear 1,03,116 1.03 61,041 0.61
Series Seed Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS)
As on March 31, 2025 As on March 31, 2624
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
At the beginning of the year 4,246 0.04 4,246 0.04
Issued during the year - - - -
[ ding at the end of the year 4,246 0.04 4,246 0.04

b) Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The Company has equity shares having a par value of INR 10 each. Each holder of equity is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of the Company,
the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in
proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

¢) Terms of conversion/redemption of Series Seed CCPS

(i) During the year ended March 31, 2019, the Company issued 4,246 CCPS - Series Seed, of INR 10 each at a premium of INR 7055.29 each for every 0.441 equity
shares of the Company held on February 27, 2018. Series Seed CCPS carry cumulative dividend @ 0.001% p.a. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian
rupees. The preferential dividend is cumulative and shall accrue from year to yeat whether paid or not paid. All accrued dividends shall be paid in full (together with
dividends accrued from prior years) prior to and in preferénce to any dividend or distribution payable. Dividends due and payable on any other shares of the Company
will be subordinate to any dividend payable on the Series Seed CCPS. Under no cir any ts shall be paid or dividends declared on any shares other
than the Series Seed CCPS, until all dividends and other amounts due and owing on the Series Seed CCPS shall have been paid in full. In addition, the Series Seed
CCPS shall fully participate with the Ordinary Shares in all dividends declared by the Company. Subject to the applicable laws, the CCPS holder shall be entitled to
receive notice of and vote on all matters that are submitted to the vote of the sharcholders of the Company (including the ordinary shares). EachSeries Seed CCPS
shall entitle the holder to the number of votes equal to the number of whole or fractional ordinary shares into which such Series Seed CCPS could then be converted.

(ii) A holder of the Series Seed CCPS may, at any time, prior to the expiry of 20 (twenty) years from the closing date, irrespective of either the Qualified TPO or Exit
takes place or not, issue a notice (“Conversion Nofice”) to the Company for conversion of any Series Seed CCPS into Equity Shares on 1: 1 basis Series Seed
(“Conversion Ratio”™) at the Series Seed Conversion Price subject to adjustment on account of anti-dilution protection and upon receipt of such notice, the Company
shall be under an obligation to convert such Series Seed CCPS to the Equity Shares in accordance with the Conversion Ratio without the need to receive any further
consideration therefore.

(i) In the event of the liquidation of the company, total proceeds from the such liquidation, shall be distributed first to the holders of Series Seed CCPS, to the fullest
extent permissible under applicable Jaws.

(this space has been intentionally lefi blank)
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in INR million, unless otherwise stated)

d) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% equity shares in the Company

Equity shares

As on March 31, 2025 As on March 31, 2024
No. of shares Ameunt No. of shares Amount
AceVector Limited (formerly known as Snapdeal Limited) * 1,03.116 100.00% 61,041 100.00%

* Mr. Bharat Veneshetti held 1 share as a nominee on behalf of AceVector Limited (formerly known as Snapdeal Limited) .

Series Seed C Isorv Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS)

As on March 31, 2025 As on March 31, 2024
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
AceVector Limited (formerly known as Snapideal Limited) 4,246 100.00% 4,246 100.00%

As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/ members and other declarations received from the shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the
above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownership of shares.

€) Details of promoters

1. AceVector Limited (formerly known as Snapieal Limited) **

Particulars No. of shares % of total shares
As on April 1, 2023 16,036 100.00%
% change during the year 49,251 -
As on March 31, 2024 65,287 100.00%
% change during the year 42,075 -
As on March 31, 2025 1,07,362 100.00%

#* Mr. Bharat Veneshetti held 1 share as 2 noominee on behalf of AceVector Limited (formerly known as Snapdeal Limited).

f) Shares reserved for issue under employee stock option plan )
Terms attached to the stock option granted to employees are described in note 38 regarding share based payment.

g) No share has been issued for consideration other than cash, no share has been allotted by way of bonus share and no share has been broughf back in the current year

and preceding 5 years,
13 Instruments entirely equity in nature As on Ason
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Equity component of CCPS
4,246 Series Seed CCPS of INR 10 each 0.04 0.04
(March 31, 2024: 4,246 Series Seed CCPS of INR 10 each)
0.04 0.04

(this space has been intentionally lefi blank)
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31,2025
(A1l amounts in INR million, unless otherwise stated)

14 Other equity As on Ason
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Securities premium "
Opening balance 326.73 39.13
Add: Received on shares issued during the year 245.70 287.60
572.43 326.73

i4.1

General reserve
Opening balance ' 341 341
Add: Changes during the year - -

3.41 341
Share based paymient reserve
Opening balance - - ;
Add: Options expense recognized 2.55 -
2.55 -
Retained earnings
Opening balance (450:39) (312.41)
Add: Loss after tax for the year (136.25) (138.06)
Add: Other comprehensive income 0.60 0.08
586.04) 450.39)
Total other equity (7.65) (120.25)

Nature and pu‘rpbse of other equity )
Securities premium reserve: Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the

Act.

Gengeral reserve: The amount transferred to g 1 reserve includ t transfer on of options lapsed during the year.’

Share based payment reserve: The share options based payment reserve is used to recognise the grant date fair value of options issued to employees under employee
stock option plan.

Retained earnings: Retained eamnings are the profits that the Company has eamed till date, less any transfers to general reserve, dividends or other distributions paid
to shareholders. Retained earnings inciudes re-measurement gain/(loss) on defined benefit plans, net of taxes that will not be reclassified to statement of profit and
loss. Retained earnings is a free reserve available to the Company and eligible for distribution to shareholders, in case where it is having positive balance representing
net earnings till date.

15 Borrowings As on As on
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Unsecured
At amortised cost
Loans from related parties - 150.00
< 150,00
Breakup of borrowings:
Non-current - 150.00

Notes related to borrowings:

1. Loan from related party
The Company had availed a loan facility from Acevector Limited (formerly Snapdeal Limited) ("the Lender"), its holding company, at an interest rate ranging between
14% and 15% per annum. As per the terms of the ag t, the ding principal was repayable within three years from the effective date, unless extended by

the Lender.

The Lender's Board of Directors, via a resolution dated September 5, 2024, approved the conversien of the outstanding loan and accrued interest into equity shares at
2 future date to be determined. Subsequently, the Company’s shareholders, in an Extraordinary General Meeting held on November 1, 2024, approved the conversion
of the outstanding dues into equity shares of the company on a preferential basis at 25,849.51 per share. Accordingly, 38,655 equity shares were issued on December
24,2024,

(this space has been intentionally lefi blank)
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended Mareh 31, 2025

(41l amounts in INR million, unless otherwise stated)

Reconciliation of movements of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities
The ghanges in the Company's Habilities arising from financing activities can be classified as follows:

Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Balance of principal and interest compenent as on the beginning of the year 166.35 359.78
Cash flows :
-Repayment (1.08) (0.47)
-Proceeds 50.00 50.00
Non Cash
-Interest expense 10.85 45.14
-Conversion of principal and interest component into equity shares 1226.12) (288.10)
Bal of principal and interest i t as on the end of the year - 166.35
16 Lease liability Ason Ason
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Lease liability 16.43 1.36
1643 1.36
Breakup of lease liability:
Non-current 14.91 0.27
Current 1.52 1.09
16.43 1.36
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities
The changes in the Company’s liabilities arising from financing activities can be classified as follows:
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Balance as on the beginning of the year 1.36 19.18
Cash flows :
~Repayment (2.04) (5.41)
Non Cash
-Interest expense 0.65 1.52
~Addition of lease liability 16.46 1.62
-Deletion of lease liability - 15.55)
Balance as on the end of the year 16.43 136
17 Other financial liabilities Ason As on
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
At amortised cost
Capital creditots 13.21 13.21
Employee related payables 4.23 0.51
Interest accrued on loan from related party (refer note 15) - 16.35
Other payables* 18.04 16.99
3548 47.06
Breakup of other financial liabilities:
Non-current
Interest accrued on loan from related party - 16.35
- 16.35
Current
Capital creditors 13.21 13.21
Employee related payables 4.23 0.51
Other payables* 18.04 16.99
35.48 30.711

* Other payables includes payables to related party amounting to INR 16.99 million (March 31, 2024: 16.99 million)

(this space has been intentionally left blank)
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(41l amounts in INR million, unless otherwise stated)

18 Provisions As on As on
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Provision for gratuity (refer note 33) 244 0.47
Provision for compensated absences (refer note 33) 2.64 0.82
5.08 1.29
Breakup of provisions::
Non-current
Provision for gratuity 2.36 0.36
Provision for compensated absences 2.17 0.67
4.53 1.03
Current
Provision for gratuity 0.08 0.11
Provision for compensated absences 047 0.15
0.55 0.26
19 Trade payables Ason Ason
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises (refer note 31) 16.35 56.97
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 15.21 6.76
31.56 63.73
1. Terms and conditions of the trade payables:
) Trade payabies are non-interest bearing and are normally settled as per terms agreed with vendors.
2. Refer note 32 for trade payables ageing.
20 Other liabilities As on As on
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Statutory dues payable 1.30 0.74
1.30 0.74

(this space has been intentionally lefi blank)
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(A1l amounts in INR million, unless otherwise stated)

21  Revenue from operations For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Revenue from Sale of Goods 98.50 236.30
Less: provision for salgs returns {3.00) -
95.50 236.30
Other operating revenue 18.68 -
114,18 236.30

(i) Remaining performance obligations

The remaining performance obligation disclosure provides the aggregate amount of the transaction price yet to be recognised as on the end of the reporting period
and an explanation as to when the Company expects to recognise these amounts in revenue. Applying the practical expedient as given in Ind AS 1135, the
Company has not disclosed the remaining performance obligation related disclosures for contracts, as the performance obligation is part of a contract that has an

otiginal expected duration of one year or less.

(i) Reconciliation of revenue recognised with contract price

Contract price 114.18 236.30
Adjustment for :
Discounts - -
Other variable considerations - -
114.18 236.30
(iii) Set out below is the disaggregation of the Company's revenue:
India 113.78 236.30
Outside India 0.40 -
Total 114.18 236.30
(iv) Timing of rendering of revenue:
Rendered at a point in time 114.18 236.30
Rendered over time - -
Total . 114.18 236.30
(v) Contract balances
The following table provides information about receivables, contract assets and contract liabilities from contracts with customers.
As on Ason
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Trade receivables 3.97 23.66

Contract liabilities

Contract liabilities are primarily from deferred revenue and advances from customers either in full or in parts. Contract ligbilities are recognized evenly over the

period, being performance obligation of the Company.

22 Other income - For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Interest income at amortised cost
Income from sub-lease - 4.80
Interest on bank deposit 0.11 -
Unwinding of interest on security deposit 0.12 0.52
Other non-operating income
Gain on lease termination - 2.83
Miscellaneous income - 0.34
Liabilities and provisions no longer required written back - 0.26
Interest on income tax refund 0.03 0.05
0.26 8.80

(this space has been left blank intentionally)
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
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21 Revenne from operations For the vear ended  For the year ended
23 Purchases For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Purchases 24.86 211.78
24.86 211.78
24 Change in inventory For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Opening inventory 94.48 39.26
Less: Closing inventory (15.38) {94.48)
79.10 155.22)
25 Employee benefits expense For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Salaries,-wages and bonus 58.01 19.32
Expenses related to defined benefits obligation (refer note 33) 0.81 0.18
Contribution to provident and other funds 2.51 0.89
Share based payment expenses (refer note 38) 2.55 -
Staff welfare expenses 0.23 0.1
64.11 20.58
26 Finance costs For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Interest expense
- on borrowings 10.85 45.14
- on lease liability 0.65 1.52
- on statutory dues - 0.03
- on MSME (1.43) 6.18
Others
Bank charges & Other Charges 0.14 0.02
16.21 52.89
27 Depreciation and amortization expense For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (refer note 3) 1.62 2.96
Depreciation on right of use asset (refer note 4) 2.02 5.25
Amortization on intangible assets (refer note 5) 2.09 2.49
5.73 10.70

(this space has been left blank intentionally)
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Stellaro Brands Private Limited

CIN: U51100DL2015PTC362498

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31,2025
(4}l amounts in INR million, unless otherwise stated)

21 Revenue from operations For the year ended  For the vear ended
28 ' Other expenses For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Marketing fees 2745 36.98
Adverti and sales promoti 14.35 24.78
Provision for inventory write down (17.51) 19.92
Provision for doubtful debts (0.15) 13.06
Warehousing cost 341 10.88
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment - 8.16
Provision for doubtful assets 0.35 (0.44) -
Less: amount written off against provisions 0.79)
Balances written off 212 -
Commission expenses 8.11 7.48
Logistic charges 6.44 5.35
Packing material expense 0.85 3.81
Legal and professional fees 4.71 242
Travelling and conveyance 0.68 2.11
Software expenses 1.16 1.94
Provision for impairment on intangible assets (refer note 5) 5.24 1.74
Manpower expenses 4.77 1.21
Freight expenses 0.55 1.06
Miscellaneous expenses 205 - 077
Rent 1.51 0.38
Rates and taxes 0.67 0.21
Maintenance expenses 0.71 0.17
66.68 142.43
Legal and professsional fees includes payment to auditor:
- Statutory audit fee 0.60 0.60
- Interim audit fee 0.60 0.20
- Tax audit fee 0.15 -
1.35 0.80
29 Earnings per equity share

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit/(loss) for the year attributable to equity helders by the weighted average number of equity shares

outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the loss attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of Equity shares
outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of Equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential Equity shares into

Equity shares.
The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:
For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Profit/ (loss) attributable to equity holders of the company (136.25) (138.06)
Weighted average number of equity shares in. calculating basic EPS 71,719 12,194
Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating Diluted EPS* 71,719 12,194
Basic earnings per share (1,899.78) (11,322.249)
Diluted earnings per share (1,899.78) (11,322.24)

# There are potential equity shares as on March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 in the form of ESOPs and CCPS issued by the Company. As these are anti-dilutive,
they are ignored in the calculation of diluted earnings per share and accordingly the diluted earnings per share is same as the basic earnings per share.

(this space has been left blank intentionally)
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30 Ageing of trade receivables

31

a. As on March 31, 2025

O ding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Not due Less than 6 6 months -1 year 1-2 Years 2.3 years More thap 3 Total
months vears

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - 1.96 423 0.78 - - - 697
|considered good

(ii) Undisputed Trade receivables - which - - - - - - -
have significant i in credit risk

(iti} Undisputed Trade receivabies - credit - - - - 0.27 - 0.27
impaired

(iv) Disputed Trade receivables - considered - - - - - - -

100d -

(v) Disputed Trade receivables ~ which have - - - - - “ -
[significant increase in credit risk

(vi) Disputed Trade receivables - credit - - - 8.25 5.57 12.93 26.75
|limpaired

There is no unbilled receivable as on March 31, 2025,

b. As on March 31, 2024

O ding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Not due Less than 6 6 months -1 year 1-2 Years 2-3 years Maore than 3 Total
months years

(i) Undisputed Trade ivabl - 17.68 595 0.02 0.01 - - 23.66
|considered good

(i} Undisputed Trade receivables - which - - - - - - -
have significant increase in credit risk

(iii) Undisputed Trade receivables - credit - - - 0.27 - - 0.27
impaired
|;Tvl)ul)isputed Trade receivables - considered - - - - - - -

00

(v) Disputed Trade receivables - which have - - - - - -
significant increase in credit risk

(vi) Dispuled Trade recejvables - credit - 6.57 1.68 557 13.08 - 26.90
impaired

There is no unbilled receivable as on March 31, 2025.

Amounts due to micro and small enterprises under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development (MSMED) Act, 2006 aggregited based on the information available

with the Company:
Ason

- Mareh 31, 2025
a) Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as per MSMED Act, 2006 the principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid
to any supplier as at the end of each accounting year;
- principal amount 11.07
- interest amount 528
b) The amount of interest paid by the buyer under MSMED Act, 2006 along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the -
appointed day during each accounting year;
c) The amount of interest due and payable for the year of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during -
the year) but without edding the interest specified under MSMED Act, 2006.
d} The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year; 5.28

c) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the sueceeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are

terprise for the se of disallowa; deductjble expenditure under section 23.

id to the st

actually

As on
March 31. 2024

50.26
6.71

6.18

6.71

(this space has been intentianally left blank)
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32

33

a)

b)

®

()

Ageing of trade payables

a. As on March 31, 2025

Outstanding for following pe

riods from due date of payment

Particulars Not due Less than 6 months | 6 months -1 vear 1-2 Years 2-3 years More thin 3 years Total
(i) MSME 12711 "~ 0.85 0.36 199 0.44 - 16.35
(31) Others 13.33 040 0.06 0.10 - 1.32 15.21
(iii} Disputed dues - MSME - - - - - - -
tiv} Disputed dues - Others - - - - - - -
b. As on March 31, 2024

O ding for follewing periods from due date of puyment

[ Particulars Not due Less than 6 months | 6 months -1 vear 1-2 Years 2-3 years Maore than 3 years Total
[{i1 MSME 932 4660 0.52 044 - 0.09 56,97
(i) Others 4.68 0.52 - - - 1.56 6.76
(jit) Disputed dues - MSME - - - - . = -
1iv) Disputed dues - Others - - = = - a -
Employee obligation
Definied contyibution plans
The Company makes contributions, determined as a specified percentage of the employee salaries in respect of 1 towards provident fund which is a defined contribution plan. The

amount recognised as an expense towards contribution to provident fund for the year aggregated to INR 2.49 million (March 31,2024: INR ©.88 million).

Pest-employment obligations - Gratuity Plan

The Company provides gratuity for employees as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972.
benefit obligation in the form of & gratuity contribution for its employees. As per the actuarial valuation, the gramity liability is

iployees who are in

in plan assets to fund this liability, therefore, the entire gratuity obligation remains unfunded.

Reconciliation of the net defined benefit (asset) / Habllity

Changes in the defined benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets as.on March 31, 2025:

services for aperiod of § years are eligible

1al

for gratuity. The company has a defined

d in the fi

, 1o i

has been made

Description Defined benefit  Fair value of plan Benefit liabitity
obligations assels
As on March 31, 2024 0.47 - 047
Acquisition Adjustments 2.06 -
Current service cost 0.78 - 0.78
Interest cost . 0.03 - 0.03
Actuarial {gains)/losses on arising from experience adjustment (0.65) - (0.65)
Actuarial (gains)/losses on arising from change in financial assumption 0.05
Benefits paid 10.29} - 10.29)
As on March 31, 2025 245 - 245
Total anioant recognlsed in statement of profit and loss (Note 25) 0.81 - 0.81
Tetal amount recognised in other comprehensive income 10.60} = (0.60)
Changes in the defined benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets as on March 31, 2024:
Description Defined benefit  Fair value of plan Benefit liability
obligations fassefs

As on March 31, 2023 047 - 0.47
Current service cost 0.15 - 0,15
Interest cost 0.03 - 6.03
Actuarial (gains)/losses on arising from experience adjustment 0.03 - 0.03
Actuarizl (gains)/losses on avising from change in financial assumption - - -
Benefits paid (0.21) - 0.21)
As on March 31, 2024 047 - 047
Total amount recognised in statement of profit and loss Note 25) 0.18 - 0.18
Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income 0.03 - 0.03
The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations for the Company’s plan is shown below:

March31,2025  March 31,2024
Discount fate ) 6.44% 7.05%
Future salary increases 7.50% 7.50%
Retirernent age (years} 60 60
Withdrawal rate 30.00% 30.00%
Mortality rates inclusive of provision for disability 100% of IALM 100% of TALM

(2012-14) (2012-14)
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(i5i) Net Hability recognised in the Balance Sheet

Ason Ason
Farticiars March31,2025  March 31,2024
Current liabilities : 0.08 0.11
Non-current liabilities 2.36 0.36
Net liability in the Balance Sheet 3114 047
(iv) A guantitative sensitivity snalysis for significant assumption is as shown below:
Defined Benefit Obligation (Base| = March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
Decruse[ lncrnse| Decrease Tncrease
sct of increase/decrease in 50 bps on DBO 004 0.04 0.01 0.01
uct of increase/decrease in 50 bps on DBO .04 0.04 4.01 0.01

Sensitivities due to mortality & withdrawals are not material & hence impact of change due to these not calculated. Sensitivities as rate of increase of pensions in payment, rate of increase of pensions before

& life exp are not applicabl
The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a result of ble changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of
the reporting petiod.

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation as on March 31, 2025 is 2.50 years. (March 31, 2024 : 2.56 years)

) Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation
The expected future cash flows in respect of gratuity were as follows:

Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Year | 0.08 0.09
Year 2 0.94 0.07
Year3 035 0.05
Year 4 0.26 0.05
Year 5 0.18 0.04
Year 6 0.12 0.03
Year 6 onwards 0.51 0.14
Tatal 244 047
S
(vi) The defined benefits obligation plan exposes the company to various actuarial risks. Most significant risk pertaining to defined benefits obligation plan is t's estimation of the impact of these risks
are as follows:
- Interest Rate Risk
The present value of the defined benefit liability is calculated using a di rate d ined by refi to market yields of Govermnment bonds. The estimated term of the bonds is consistent with the
estimated term of the defined benefit obligation (DBO} and it is d inated in INR. A d in market yield on government bonds will increase the Company’s-defined benefit liability.
- Life expectancy
The present value of the defined benefit liability is calculated by refk to the best estimate of the lity of participants both during and after their employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the

participanis will increase the Company's liability.

- Inflation Risk .
A significant proportion of the defined benefit Tiability is linked to inflation. An increase in the inflation rate will increase the Company's lisbility.

¢) Ceompensated absences
An amount of INR (0.74) million as on March 31, 2025 (March 31, 2024: 0.65) pertains to expense towards compensated absences.

The principal assumptions used in determining Compensated absences for the Company’s plan is shown below:

Particular March 31, 2025 March 31. 2024
Discount rate 6.44% 7.05%
Future salary increases 7.50% 7.50%
Retirement age {yeats) (] 60
Withdrawal rate 30% 30%
Leave Availment Rate 2.50% 2.50%
Montality rates inclusive of provision for disability 100% of IALM (2012. 160% of IALM {2012
14) 14)

(this space has been left blank intentionally}
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34 Leases
The company has leases for the offline stores. With the exception of short term Ieases and low value undeslying assets, cach lease in the balance sheet is reflected as a right of use asset and a lease liability.
Variable lease payments which do not depend on an index or a rate are excluded from the initial measurement of the lease liability and asset. The company classified its right of use asset in a consistent
manner to its property, plant and ¢quipment.

Lease Habilities arc presented in the financial statements as follows:
Particulars . Ason As bn
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Non-current assets

Right-of-use assets (Premises taken on rent) 16.97 141
Total agsets 16.97 141
Liabilities
Lease liabilities 16.43 136
Total liabilities 1643 1.36
Statement of profit and loss For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2025 Masrch 31, 2024
Depreciation on right-of-use asset 2.02 525
Rent expense on short term lease 151 0.38
Interest on lease liability . 0.65 1.52
Gain on lease termination - (2.83)
4.18 4.32
Statement of cash flows For the year ended  For the year ended
) March 31, 2028 March 31, 2024
Impact on loss before tax (4.18) (4.32)
“ Depreciation on right-of-use asset 202 525
Tnterest on lease tiability 0.65 1.52
Gain on lease termination - 12.83)
(1.51) (0.38)
Payment of principal portion of lease lability (1.40) {4.38)
Payment of interest portion of lease liability (0.65) 1.521
Net cash flow from/ (used in) financing activities {2.08) (5.90)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents during the year (3.56) 16.28)
Lease Habilities are presented in the financial statements a5 follows:
Particulars Ason Ason
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Current lease liabilities 14.91 0.27
Non-current lease ligbilities 1.52 1.09
Total 1643 1.36
The movement of lease liabilities non- carrent and current are as follows:-
Particulars Ason Ason
March 31, 2025 March 31. 2024
Balance at the beginning 1.36 19.18
Additions during the year 16.46 1.62
Deletions during the year . (15.55)
Finance cost accrued during the period 0.65 1.52
Payment of lease liabilities 12051 541}
1642 1.36
The undiscounted maturity analysis of lease liabilities is 85 follows:
Particulars Ason As on
March 31. 2025 Mareh 31,2024
Less than one year 3.74
One to five years 17.24 0.27
More than five vears 522 -
26.20 1.47

The weighted average i 1t ing rate applied to lease liabilities as at March 31, 2025 is 14.43% (March 31, 2024: 14.43%).
The Company does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities as the current assets are sufficient to meet the obligations related to lease labilities as and when they fail due.

Rental expense recorded for short-term leases is INR 1.51 million for the yeer ended March 31, 2025 {March 31, 2024: INR 0.38 million).

The Company’s lease arrangements include certain variable lease payments that are based on a p of sales. In d. with Ind AS 116 - Leases, such payments are not included in the
measurement of the lease liability or the right-of-use (ROU) asiet. Instead, these payments are recognized as an expense in the period in which the related sales occur.

For the year ended March 31, 2025, variable lcase payments based on a percentage of sales were Nif (March 31, 2024: Nil).
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35 C i and conti i

(1] Commimmns
d amount of ining to be d which is of capital nature {net of advances) and which have not been provided for in the fi ial as at March 31,2025 amounts to INR

1.26 million (March 31, 2024: INR Nil).
C 1 i for capital

are relating to leaschold improvement.

P

(i) Contingencies
As on March 31, 2025: the Company has INR Nil Contingencies (March 31, 2024: INR Nil).

36 Segment information

Operating segments are defined as componen(s of an enterprise for which discrete financial information is available that is evaluated regularly by the chief operating decision maker {"CODM"), in deciding
how to allocate and per The Company’s chief operating decision maker is the holding company's Managing director and Chief Executive Officer.

F At 6 ]

The Company has as bl ‘The busi iprises of.

1. Market place and others
2. Offlines Stores

1. Marketplace and Others:
This segment includes revenue derived from the sale of the company’s products through third-party online marketplaces such as Amazon, Flipkart, and similar digital platforms. It also comprises sales made

through third-party retail stores, wherein the company’s products arc stocked and sold, but the stote operations are not iled by the pany.

2. Offline stores:

This segment comprises revenue from retail operations carried out through physical stores leased and op d directly by the pany. These stores exclusively feature and sell products under the
company’s brand.

Segment Reporting as on March 31, 2025

Particulars Marketplace and Offline Stores Total
others
Segment Revenue
Revenue from sale of Goods 90.56 23.62 114.18
Segement Costs
Change in inventory (81.19) 2.09 {79.10)
Purchases (10.71) {14.15) {24.86)
Emplovee benefits expense (5.56) - {5.56)
Depreciation and amomzauon expense 240} (131 {3.71
Othe1 ! oni ible assets (55.00) (6.58) {61.58)
H on i ible assets 524 - (5.24)
Rent exp not included in Other exp in d with Ind'AS 116 - Leases - (2.05) 2.05)
Segment Results (69.54) 1.62 (67.92)
Other Income 0.26
Employee benefits expense (58.55)
Finance costs (10.07)
Depreciation and amortization expense €2.02)
R { of Rent exp not included in Other exp in d with Ind AS 116~ Leases 2.05
Loas before tax {136.25)
Repol as 09 March 31
Particulars Market Place and Offline Stores Total
others
Segment Revenue
Revenue from sale of Goods 23272 358 23630
Segement Costs
Change in inventory . 5326 1.96 55.22
Purchases (207.95) (383 211.78)
Depreciation and amomzanon expense {10.16) - (10.16)
Other Tudi ! ont ible ‘assets {138.13) {2.56) {140.69)
1 on i ible assets (1.74) - (1.74)
Rent exp not included in Other exp in d with Ind AS 116 - Leases - 0.31) {031)
Segment Results {72.00) (1.16) {73.16}
Other Income 8.80
Emplovee benefits expense (20.58)
Finance costs {52.89)
Depreciation and amortization expense (0.54)
Reversal of Rent not included in Other exp in d: with Ind AS 116 - Leases 0.31

53 befoy X (138.06)

(this space has been left blank intentionally)
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37 Financial instruments - Fair vilues measurement and risk management

A Fair values measarement

(i) Fi ial instr ts - by gory
The carrying value and fair value.of fi ial instruments by categories as on March 31, 2025 were as follows:
Particulars Fair value through | Fair value through | Amertized cost |Total carrying value| Total fair value
profit and loss ocC1
account
a) Financial assets
Trade receivables - - 3.97 3.97 3.97
Cash & cash equivalents - - 441 441 441
Other fi jal assets - - 7.27 727 727
Total financial assets - - 15.68 15.68 15.65
b) Financial Habilities
Borrowings - - - - -
Lease liability - - 16.43 16.43 16.43
Trade payables - - 31.56 31.56 31.56
Other financial liabilities - - 35.48 35.48 3548
Total financial labilities - - 83.47 83.47 83.47
The carrving value and fair value of fi ial instruments by as on March 31, 2024 were as follows:
Particulars Fair value through | Fair value through | Amortized cost |Total carrying value| Total fair value
profit and loss ocC1
account
a) Financial assets
Trade receivables - - 23.66 23.66 23.66
Cash & cash equivalents - - 2.29 2.29 2.29
Other fi ial assets - - 142 142 142
Total fi ial assets - - 2737 2737 2737
b) Financial liabilities
Borrowings - - 150.00 150.00 150.00
Lease liability - - 1.36 1.36 1.36
Trade payables - - 63.73 63.73 63.73
Other financial liabilities - “ 47.06 47.06 47.06
Total fi ial liabilities - - 262.15 262.15 262.15

(ii) Fair value hierarchy

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company's assets and liabilities.
Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active matkets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable, either directly or indirectly.
Level 3: technigues which use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on observable market data.

Note: No agsets or liabilities are measured under Level 1, 2 or 3 for the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 and, hence no disclosure has been given.

B Fair values bjectives and polici

The Company's financial liabilities comprises of trade and other payables. The purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance & support its operations. The Company's
principal financial assets include trade and other receivables, and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s management is supported by a financial advisory group that advises on financial risks and

the appropriate financial risk governance fr

k. The

and that financial risks are identified,

d and

d in d with the C

4

assures that the Company's financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures
y's policies and risk objectives. All derivative activities for risk management

purposes are carried out by the teams that have the appropriate skills, experience and supervision. In accordance to the Company's palicy, no trading in derivatives for speculative
purposes may be undertaken. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing cach of these risks, which are summarised below.

(i) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will f}
such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates that will affect Company’s income or the value of its

of ch in market prices. It is a risk of changes in market prices

Holdi

ial instr

The C

g of fi

has in place appropriate risk

ing and robust cash

management policies to limit the impact of these risks on its financial performance. The Company

management practices.

a) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or firture cash flows of a financial instrument will fh

b) Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exp

any significant exposure in currency other than INR.

p ion of its cash through fund pl
b of changes in market interest rates.
e will fl b of changes in foreign excl
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(i) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a or party to a financial i fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principaily from
the Company’s receivables from 5, loans. Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited as the Company gencrally invests in deposits with banks with high credit
ratings assigned by domestic credit rating agencies. The maximum exposure to the credit risk at the reporting date is pnmanly from trade receivables. Trade receivables are
unsecured and are derived from revenue earned from customers primarily located in India. The Company does the f in which it op The
Company manages its credit risk through credit approvals, establishing credit lirnits and continuously monitoring credit worthiness of customers to which the Company granis

credit terms in the normal course of business.

The Company has given security deposits to vendors for rental deposits for office properties. The Company does not expect any default from these parties and accordingly the
risk of default is negligible or nil.

Trade receivables and contract asset
Customer eredit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Company’s blished policies, procedures and control relating to credit risk g t

Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses.

The calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and supportable information that is available at the reporting date about past

events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions. The Company does not hold collateral as security. The Company e the ion of risk with
respect to trade receivables and contract assets as low, as its customers are located in several jurisdictions and industries and op in largely independent markets.

The following table provides infc ion about the exposure to credit risk and expected credit loss for trade receivables from individual customers:

As on March 31, 2025: Gross carrying  Weighted- average Loss allowance
amount loss rate
Less than 6 months 6.19 - -
6 months-1 year 0.78 - -
1-2 Years’ 8.25 100% 8.25
2-3 years 5.84 100% 5.84
More than 3 years 12.93 100% 12.93
33.99 27.02
As on March 31, 2024: Gross carrying  Weighted- average Leoss allowance
amount loss rate
Less than 6 months 30.20 22% 6.57
6 months-1 year 1.70 99% 1.68
1-2 Years 5.85 100% 5.84
2-3 years 13.08 100% 13.08
More than 3 years - - -
50.83 27.17
The closing balance of the trade receivables loss allowance as on March 31, 2025 reconciles with the trade receivables loss all opening bal as follows:
Opening loss aowance as on April 1, 2023 14.11
Loss allowance recognised/(reversal) during the year 13.06
Loss allowance.as on March 31. 2024 2717
Loss atlowance gnised/(reversal) during the year (0.15)
27.02

Loss allowance as on March 31, 2025

Cash and cash equivalents: The company held cash and cash equivalents of INR 4.41 million as at March 31, 2025 (March 31, 2024: INR 2.29 million). The cash and cash
equivalents are held with leading public and private sector Bank. There is no impairment on cash and cash equivalents as on the reporting date.

The company has assessed the credit risk associated with its financial assets and confirms that there has been no significant increase in credit risk beyond 30 days past due. The
y follows a str d credit risk evaluation p idering historical pay patterns, fi ial health indi and macr ic conditions.

Financial instruments and cash deposits
Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company's treasury department in accordance with the Company's policy. Investments of

surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each party. C party credit limits are reviewed by the Company’s Board
of Directors on an annual basis. The limits are set to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate fi ial loss through counterparty’s potential failure to make
payments.

The Ccmpanys maxxmnm exposure to credit risk for the components of the balance sheet as on March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 is the carrying amounts. The Company's
lating to fi | guarantees and financial derivative instruments is Nil.

P
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(iii) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting financial ebligations due to shortage of funds. The Company’s exposure to liquidity risk arises

primarily from mismatches of the maturities of financial assets and liabilities. The Company maintains a bal between ity of funding and flexibility.
The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments.
As on March 31, 2025:
On demand Less than 3 months | 3 to 12 months 1 to S years More than § years Total
Lease liability - 0.97 2.77 17.24 5.22 26,20
Trade payables - 31,56 - - 31.56
Other fi ial liabilities - 3548 - - - 3548
- 68.01 2.77 17.24 522 93.24
As on Mareh 31, 2024:
On demand Less than 3 months | 3 to 12 months 1to S years More than 5 years Total
Lease liability - 0.28 0.92 0.27 - 1.47
Trade payibles - 63.73 - - - 63.73
Other financial habilities - 30.71 - 16,35 - 47.06
Borrowings - - - 150.60 - 150.00
- 94.72 0.92 166.62 - 262.26
E ive risk ation
Concentrations arise when a number of parties are engaged in similar t activities, or activities in the same geographical region, or have economic features that

would cause their ability to mezt contractual obligations to be similarly

ffected by ck

in e

sensitivity of the Company’s performance to developments affecting a particular industry.

In order to avoid excessive concentrations of risk, the Company's p and p
Identified concentrations of credit risks are controlled and managed accordingly.

{iv) Capital management
For the purpose of the Company capital t, capital #

attributable to the equity holders of the parent. The primary objective of the C

°s capital

political or other conditions. Concentrations indicate the relative

include specific guidelines to focus on the maintenance of a diversified portfolio,

ludes issued equity capital, convertible preference shares, securities premium and all other equity reserves
is to ensure that it maintains an efficient capital structure and healthy

capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise shareholder value. The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus

net debt. Net debt is calculated as loans and borrowings less cash and cash equivalents.

In order to achieve this overall objective, the C
bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or p for

(this space has been intentionally lefi blank)

capital during the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024.

Particulars Legends March 31, 2023 March 31,2024
Debt/ borrowings - 150.60
Less: Cash and.cash equivalents (Note 9) (4.41) 12.29)
Net debt (A) A {4.41) 147.71
Equity share capital 1.03 0.61
Instruments entirely equity in nature 0.04 0.04
Other equity (7.65) {120.25)
Total capital (B) B 16.58) (119.60)
Capital and net debt (C) (C=A+B) (10.99) 28.11
Gearing ratio {CIA) N.A. 18.74%
Y's capital gst other things, aims to ensure that it meets fi 1 hed to the i
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38 Share based payments
General Employee Share-option Plan (GESP):

The Company instituted the Steilaro Brands Private Limited Employee Stock Option Plan 2024 (“The 2024 Scheme”) to grant equity based incentives to eligible employees of
the Company. The 2024 Scheme was approved by the Board of Directors of the Company at their meeting held on January 31, 2025 and by the shareholders of the Company on
January 31, 2025. As on date, 7,496 options have been granted to eligible employees. No time based options have been vested. Each option is convertible into one Equity Share
of face value INR 10/- each.

Movements during the year

The following table illustrates the ber and weighted average exercise prices (WAEP) of. and movements in, share options during the year:

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
2024 Scheme Numb WAEP Number ‘WAEP
Outstanding at 1 April - INR 10 - INR 10
Granted during the year 7,496 INR 10 - INR 10
Lapsed during the year - INR 10 - INR 10
Outstanding at the end of the year 7.496 INR 10 - INR 10
Exercisable at the end of the year - INR 10 - INR 10

Total expense arising from share based payment transaction for the year is INR 2.55 million (March 31, 2024: INR Nil million) has been charged to statement of profit and loss.

The weighted average inil i life for the share options outstanding as at March 31, 2025 was 7.07 years (March 31, 2024: Nil years).

The weighted average fair value of options granted during the year was INR 3,666.79 (March 31, 2024: INR Nil).
The exercise price for options outstanding at the end of the year was INR 10 (March 31, 2024: INR Nil).

The following tables list the inputs to the models used for the GESP plans for the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 (Model used: Black Scholes valvation model):

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

GESP GESP
Dividend yield (%) - -
Expected volatility (%) 0.001% -
Risk—free interest rate (%) 6.50% - 6.59% -
Expected life of share options 3.5-6.5 vears -

The expected life of the share options is based on historical data and current expectations and is not necessarily indicative of exercise patterns that may ocour. The expected
volatility reflects the assumption that the historical volatility over a period similar to the life of the options is indicative of future trends, which may also not necessarily be the
actual outcome.

(this space has been intentionally left blank)
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39  Financial ratios

The accounting ratios of the Company are as follows:

Particulars Ni D For the year ended| For the year ended % Change Remarks for variance
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Current ratio Current assets Current Labilities 0.80 135 +40.72% | Variance is on account of decrease in current|
assets and current liabilities during the year.
Debt equity ratio Total debt Sharcholder's equity - (1.25) -100.00% | Variance is on account of conversion of debt]
during the current yeur.
Net capital turnover ratio Reveriue from operations | Working eapital = 11.75 (291) -504.26% | Variance is on account of decrease in revenue|
Current assets — from operations during the year.
Cutrent liabilities
Net profit/ (loss) ratio Net loss Revenue from (1.19) (0.58) 104.24% | Variance is on account of decrease in revenue
operations fromn operations during the year,
Trade payables turnover ratio Total purchases Average trade 0.52 511 -89.79%|Variance is on account of decrease in
{in times) payabies purchases during the year.
Trade receivables turnover ratio Revenue from operations | Average trade 2.69 5.76 -53.29% | Variance is on sccount of decrease in revenue|
(in times) receivables from operations during the vear.
Inventory turnover ratio Cost of good sold = Average inventory 2.38 2.75 ~13.37%|-
(in times) Purchase + Change in
inventory
L Net profit after taxes — | Average 2.16 0.71 204.49% | Variance is on account of loss during the year.
Retum on Bquity (ROE) Preference dividend Sharcholder’s Equity
De N . | Earnings for debt service {Debt service 36.52 9.82 271.86% | Variance is on account of conversion of debt
ebt service coverage ratio 1
during the current vear.
Earninigs before interest |Capital employed = 16.79 (3.98) -521.77% | Variance s on account of loss during the year.

Return on Capital Employed

and taxes

Tangible net worth +
Total debt

Note: The Company is not presenting followings ratios:
1. Retirn on investment: The Company does not have any investment. Hence, this ratio has not been shown.

7

2. Schedule Il requires
given only for the said ratios.

(this space has been intentionally left blank)

were the change in the ratio is move than 25% as compare to the preceding year. Since there are 9 instances were change is more than 25%. hence explanation is




Stellaro Brands Private Limited

CIN: U51100DL201SPTC362498

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(A1l amounts in INR million, unless otherwise stated)

40 Related party transactions
(a) Names of related parties and nature of related party relationships

(i) Holding Company AceVector Limited (formerly known as Snapdeal Limited)

(ii) Fellow-Subsidiary Unicommerce eSolutions Limited
(formerly Unicommerce eSolutions Private Limited)

(iii) Key management personnel Saurabh Bansai (Director w.e.f. May 27, 2022 till April 04, 2023)
Manish Ahlawat (Director w.c.f. March 29, 2023 till July 23, 2024)
Himanshu Chakrawarti (Director w.e.f. May 27, 2022)
Shashi K Jalan (Director w.e.f. July 13, 2024)
Pravin Keshavan Kutty (Director w.e.f. April 25, 2025)

(b) Transactions with related parties

The following table provides the details of transactions / balances with the related parties during the year:
Nature of transactions - Holding Company Fellow-Subsidiary Key I t Personnel
March 31,2025  March 31,2024  March 31,2025  March 31,2024  March 31,2025 March 31, 2024

AceVector Limited

Proceeds from issue of equity shares 20.01 - -
Loan taken during the year 50.00 50.00 - - - -
Interest on unsecured loan 10.85 45.14 - - = -
Cross-charge exp. (paid on Company's behalf)* - 16.71 - -
Loan (incl. accrued interest) converted into equity 226.11 288.09 - - = -
shares during the year

Unicommerce eSolutions Limited
Software Expenses* - - 0.77 127 - : -

Key managerial personnel
Remuneration paid
Share based payment expenses - - - -

- - 4.01 7.04
1.77 -

(1) Remuneration to the key managerial personnel does not include the provisions made for gratuity and leave encashment, as they are determined on actuarial basis for the
company as a whole,

(c) Balance outstanding at year end:

The following table provides the details of balances with the related parties at year end:
Nature of balance Holding Company Fellow-Subsidiary Key management Personnel
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024 March 31,2025 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2824

AceVector Limited

Unsecured loans (including interest) - 166.35 - - - -
Capital creditors 13.21 13.21 - - = -
Recoverables from related parties 5.06 - - - . .
Other payables 16.99 16.99 - - - -

Unicommerce eSolutions Limited
Trade pavables - - 0.06 0.05 - -

41 Details.of Benami property held
The management has certified that there has not been any p dings initiated or pending against the Company for holding any B i property under the Benami transactions

(Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.
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Additional regulatory information required by Schedule ¥TT of Companies Act, 2013
The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the current or previous year.

The Company has not advanced or provided loan to or invested funds in any entity(ies) including foreign entities (Intermediaries) or to any other person(s) with the understanding
that the Intermediary shall:

- directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behaif of the Comp (Ultimate Beneficiaries); or
- provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the und ding (whether r ded in writing or

otherwise) that the Company shall:
- directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
- provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaties.

dored or dicclased

The Company does not have any transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surr or as i during the year in the tax assessments

under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).

The Company has not been declared a *Wilful Defaulter’ by any bank or financial institution (as defined under the Companies Act, 2013) or consertium thereof, in accordance
with the guidelines on wilful defaulters issued by the Reserve Bank of India.

The Company has complied with the provisions of clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017.

The Company has not revalued any of its property, plant and equip & intangible assets {including Right-of-use assets) during the year.

The Company does not have any transaction with the struck off companies for the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024.

The Company does not have any charges which is yet to be regi d with Regi of Companies (ROC") beyond the statutory period. H , there is satisfaction of charg
which is yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies (ROC'). The Company has followed up with the bank for providing NOC (no objection certificate) required for filing of
Form CHG-4.

During the year ended March 31, 2025, the Company, being a deemed public company, did not comply with the provisions of Section 149(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, which
requires a public pany to have a mini of three di on its Board. The Board consisted of only two directors throughout the year. A third director was appointed on,
April 29, 2025 subsequent to year-end. The management is of the view that any monetary penalty arising from this i is not expected to be material.

The Company has used ting softy for maintaining its books of account for the year ended March 31, 2025 which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit Jog) facility
and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software, except that in respect of:

a. accounting software for maintenance of payroll records, operated by third party software service provider, the independent auditors service organization controls 1 type 2
report does not cover the assessment of audit trail of an ing software maintained by third party;

b. point of sale (POS) sofiware operated by a third party software service provider, an independent auditor’s system and organization controls report covering the requirement ¢
audit trail is absent,

The Company is evaluating the options to enable the required audit trails with respect to above.

Furthermore, the audit trail for the accounting software has been preserved by the Company for the period from February 19, 2024 to March 31, 2025, in compliance with the
statutory requirements relating to record retention.

For the year ended March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024, the Company has net deferred tax assets primarily comprising of unabsorbed depreciation and carry-forward losses under tax

laws. H , in the at of ble certainty backed by convincing evidence of future taxable income, deferred tax asset has not been recognised.

Application of new standards and di t:

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs notified new standards or amendment to existing standards under Companies (Indian A ing Standards) Rules as issued from time to time.
The Company applied following d for the first-time during the current year which are effective from 1 April 2024.

Ind AS 116 - Lease liability in a sale and leaseback: The amendments require an entity to recognise lease liability including variable lease payments which are not linked to index
or a rate in a way it does not result into gain on Right of Use asset it retains. The amendment did not have any material impact on the ial of the company.
Introduction of Ind AS 117: MCA notified Ind AS 117, a comprehensive standard that prescribe, ghition, and discl qui to avoid diversities in
practice for accounting insurance contracts and it applies to all panies i.e., to all "i tracts" regardless of the issuer. However, Ind AS 117 is not applicable to the
entities which are insurance companies registered with IRDAIL The amendment did not have any material impact on the fi fal of the company.

The Company has reviewed the new pronouncements and based on its evaluation has determined that these amendments do not have a significant impact on the Company's
restated financial information.
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47 Standards issued but not yet effective

On 7 May 2025, MCA notifies the amendments to Ind AS 21 - Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates. These amendments aim 1o provide clearer guidance on assessing

currency exch bility and estimati hange rates when currencies are not readily exch ble. The dments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
April 2025. The Company is currently assessing the probable impact of these dments on its fi Tat
48 Previous year figures have been regrouped and reclassified, wherever v, to confirm to current year classification and grouping.
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